
AGENDA
REGULAR SESSION

MONDAY, APRIL 20, 2020 7:00 PM
PRESIDING: THE HONORABLE MAYOR JOSEPH R. PETERSON

CHAIRPERSON OF THE EVENING: THE HONORABLE DONALD SCHULTZ
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL Mayor Peterson, Alderman, Calvin, DeSana, Maiani, Sabuda, Schultz
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC
At this time, any persons having matters of immediate importance which they were unable to 
place in writing prior to the agenda deadline may approach the podium to address Mayor and 
Council.
 

CONSENT AGENDA All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the 
City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items, unless a Council member so requests, in which event the items will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and added to the regular agenda in New Business.
1. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes  03.02.2020
2. Quarterly Investment Reports – 2019 3rd and 4th Quarters
3. 2020 Bishop Park Concession Lease
4. 2020/2021 Blount Cruise Ship Dockings
5. 2020 WSAF Guide Book 
6. Mimi's Mission NonProfit Status Request

 

NEW BUSINESS 
7. State of EmergencyCity of Wyandotte
8. Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act and Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion Act 
9. Reappointment – Department of Legal Affairs
10. Appointment to Planning Commission
11. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan  Equipment and Replacement Fund
12. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan  Construction Fund
13. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund
14. Police DepartmentPurchase of Body Worn Cameras
15. 1st Amendment to Maintenance Agreement w/ Wayne Metropolitan Community Action Agency
16. Bid File #4719: Waste Management Contract Amendment
17. Bid File #4707: Contract Extension  Asphalt Resurfacing Program
18. Bid File #4757: Contract Extension  Bituminous Street Joint & Crack Sealing Program
19. Bid File #4726: Contract Extension  Grass Cutting Services



20. Bid File #4778: Demolition of Various Structures
21. Composting Agreement
22. Final Reading #1485: Amendment to the City of Wyandotte Retirement Ordinance
23. First Reading #1486: Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 14  Garbage, Trash and Weeds
24. First & Final Reading #1487: Setting Salary for Department of Legal Affairs

 

BILLS & ACCOUNTS 
 

REPORTS & MINUTES 
WMS Commission 2/26/2020
Police Commission 02/25/2020
Fire Commission 2/25/2020
Police Commission 03/10/2020
Beautification Commission 03/11/2020
Cultural and Historical Commission  2/13/2020
 

REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL: May 4, 2020
 

ADJOURNMENT 



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #1
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held under the date of March 2, 2020, be approved as recorded, 
without objection.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



1  March 2, 2020 

 CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

A Regular Session of the Wyandotte City Council was held in Council Chambers, on Monday, 

March 2, 2020, and was called to order at 7:00pm with Honorable Mayor Joseph R. Peterson presiding. 
 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance, followed by roll call.

 
Present: Councilpersons Robert Alderman, Christopher Calvin, Robert DeSana, Megan Maiani, Leonard 

Sabuda, and Donald Schultz 
 

ABSENT: City Treasurer, Todd Browning 
 

Also, Present: Theodore Galeski, City Assessor; William Look, City Attorney; Greg Mayhew, City 

Engineer; and Lawrence Stec, City Clerk 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

2020-64 MINUTES  

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held under the date of February 24, 2020, be approved as 

recorded, without objection. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-65 WYANDOTTE BOAT CLUB – BLITZEN THE DOTTE RUN EVENT 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council Concurs with the recommendation of the Special Event Coordinator to 

approve the use of city sidewalks and property, as requested by the Wyandotte Boat Club, for the 

Blitzen the Dotte 10K event to be held on November 21, 2020, provided the group add the City of 

Wyandotte as additional insured to their insurance policy and sign a hold harmless agreement to be 

prepared by the Department of Legal Affairs. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-66 RENTALS FOR THE 2020 WYANDOTTE STREET ART FAIR 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

WHEREAS Symon Rental will provide various tents, tables, and other items for the 2020 Wyandotte 

Street Art Fair to be held July 8-11, 2020. 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council approves the contract between the City of Wyandotte and Symon 

Rental to provide rentals for the 2020 Wyandotte Street Art Fair in the maximum amount of $3,010.00 

to be paid from the WSAF Expense account #285-225-925-730-860. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said contract. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

 

 

 



2  March 2, 2020 

NEW BUSINESS  

2020-67 FIRST READING #1485: WYANDOTTE RETIREMENT ORDINANCE 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED that a first reading of Ordinance #1485 be held on March 2, 2020, concerning the 

necessary amendments to the City's Retirement Ordinance. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-68 WPD – SOUTHERN INFORMATION NETWORK CONSORTIUM 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council concurs with the approval of payment 

to the City of Trenton in the invoice amount of $22,197.70. for SINC computer software transition and 

FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL authorizes the Police Department to pay said 

invoice. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-69 NATIONAL VIETNAM WAR VETERANS DAY CEREMONY 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that Council Concurs with the recommendation of the Special 

Events Coordinator, Fire Chief, Police Chief and Recreation Superintendent to approve the use of city 

sidewalks and streets for the Vietnam Veterans ceremony to be held on March 29th, 2020 at 1pm. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following streets shall be temporarily closed during the 

ceremony:  

Both lanes of Veterans Blvd 

Vinewood on Van Alstyne 

North of Chestnut on Van Alstyne 

The City Departments have reviewed this request and are in full support. A hold harmless agreement 

should be created by the Legal Department for the use of city property. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-70 FY19 DMS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council to receive and place on file the audited Financial Statements for 

the Department of Municipal Services for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-71 WATER DEPARTMENT DUMP TRUCK PURCHASE 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

BE IT RESOLVED by City Council that Council concurs with the Municipal Services Commission in 

the following resolution: 

A resolution authorizing the purchase of a 2020 Ford F-350 XL 4x2 Dump Truck from Gorno Ford of 

Woodhaven by the Water Department for an amount not to exceed $43,815 as secured through the State 

of Michigan MI-Deal vehicle bid contract #071B7700181, as recommended by WMS management. 

Motion carried. 

YEAS: Councilpersons Calvin, DeSana, Maiani, Sabuda, Schultz 

NAYS: None 

ABSTAIN: Councilperson Alderman 
 

2020-72 SALE OF FORMER 1093-1099 8TH ST. 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL that the communication from the City Engineer 

regarding the City owned property located at former 1093-1099 8th Street is hereby received and placed 

on file; AND 



3  March 2, 2020 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council concurs with the recommendation to sell the property 

known as former 1093-1099 8th Street to K P Homes Solutions, LLC, Peter Fraley, in the amount of 

$10,000.00; AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the Purchaser(s), K P Homes Solutions, LLC does not undertake  

development within six (6) months from time of closing and complete construction within one (1) year 

will result in Seller’s right to repurchase property including any improvements for Eight-Thousand 

($8,000) Dollars. A condition will be placed on the Deed that will include this contingency; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute the Offer to Purchase Real Estate for the property known as former 1093-1099 8th 

Street, between K P Homes Solutions, LLC, and the City of Wyandotte for $10,000 as presented to 

Council. 

Motion unanimously carried. 

 

REPORTS & MINUTES 

Cultural & Historical Commission 02/12/2020 

Fire Commission   01/28/2020 

Planning Commission   12/19/2020 

Recreation Commission  2/12/2020 

Retirement Commission  02/21/2020 
 

REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

2020-73 ADJOURNMENT 

By Councilperson Sabuda, supported by Councilperson Alderman 

RESOLVED, that this regular meeting of the Wyandotte City Council be adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 

Motion unanimously carried.  

 

       

____________________________________ 

   Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 2 

 

ITEM: Quarterly Investment Reports – 2019 3rd and 4th Quarters

 

PRESENTER: Robert J. Szczechowski, Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: Quarterly Investment Reports are required by state law.  All investments 
during the quarters are in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy and State Statutes along 
with the City’s three investment objectives:  Preservation of Capital, Liquidity and lastly Yield.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with all the requirements of our laws and 
regulations. The reports keep the City in compliance with Public Act 213 of 2007, an 
amendment to Public Act 20 of 1943.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt the resolution to receive and place on file the 2019 3rd 
and 4th Quarter Quarterly Investment Reports.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: n/a
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Report on CD's (attachment A)
2. Report on Other Accounts (attachment B)



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #2
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council hereby receives and places on file the 2019 3rd and 4th Quarter Quarterly 
Investment Report submitted on April 20, 2020 by the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



















CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 3 

 

ITEM: 2020 Bishop Park Concession Lease

 

PRESENTER: Justin Lanagan 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: For the last 5 years Saif Algaithe and his partner Fattah Motahhar have ran 
and operated the Bishop Park Concession Stand and have done an outstanding job for us.
 
Mr. Algaithe recently finished school and has become an electrical engineer for one of the Big 
3, Mr. Motahhar and his father Mohammed would like to continue operating the stand for 
2020.  Mr. Motahhar will operate the Concession Stand and Restrooms and pay the City 
$2,000.00 in five $400 installments. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To provide the finest services and quality of life 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt a resolution concurring with the Superintendent of 
Recreation’s recommendation to have the Mayor and City Clerk sign the contract for the 
2020 Bishop Park Concession Stand.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: 
101-000-651-030.  Mr. Motahhar will be responsible for making five $400 dollar payments that 
will be due the last business day of each month beginning in May and concluding in September.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolutions and all necessary documents will be forwarded 
to the Mayor and City Clerk to sign.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Bishop Park Contract 2020



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #3
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 

RESOLVED by the City Council that Council hereby CONCURS in the recommendation of the 
Superintendent of Recreation and the Recreation Commission to award a one year extension to operate the 
Bishop Park Concession Stand for the 2020 season to Mohammed Motahhar, in the amount of $2,000 provided 
the proper insurance is placed on file in the City Clerk's Office and all stipulations are adhered to as outlined in 
said lease; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said lease 
agreement on behalf of the City of Wyandotte
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   











CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 4 

 

ITEM: 2020/2021 Blount Cruise Ship Dockings

 

PRESENTER: Justin Lanagan 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: For 20 years, the Blount Cruise Line has been renting and utilizing our 
docking facility at Bishop Park as a port destination for several of their trips on the Great 
Lakes.  The ships are docked for a 24 hour period, often arriving and departing early in the 
morning.  Each ship has 44 cabins which can accommodate 88 passengers.  The ships utilize 
the northern most dock so that they do not interfere with the Diamond Jack dockings.  During 
their brief stay, passengers have free time in which they may partake in an optional trip to 
Greenfield Village or the DIA, or they can shop and dine in our downtown shops and 
restaurants.  Last year Blount utilized the docks for 6 trips.  In 2020 and 2021, the ships would 
like to use the docks a total of 6 times:  June 29, July 11,  August 18, August 23, August 30, 
and September 4.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To provide the finest services and quality of life.
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to accept and sign the 
contract with Blount Small Ship Adventures.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: 101-000-651-095.  Docking vessels 
pay a daily rate of $200 per day plus $25 for garbage removal.  

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolutions and all necessary documents will be forwarded 
to the Mayor and City Clerk to sign.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Blount Hold Harmless Agreements
2. 2020 Blount Contract



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #4
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED by the City Council that Council CONCURS with the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Recreation and hereby APPROVES the Bishop Park Docking Agreement with Blount Small Ship Adventures 
for 2020-2021.  Ships will dock on June 29, July 11,  August 18, August 23, August 30, and September 4 of 
2020 and 2021, at a rate of $200 per day plus $25 per docking for garbage removal; AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the docking 
contract
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   













CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 5 

 

ITEM: 2020 WSAF Guide Book 

 

PRESENTER: Heather A. Thiede-Champlin 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A 
 

BACKGROUND: We will be contracting with Community Publishing to print the guide for 
this year’s Wyandotte Street Art Fair. The Special Events Office will be creating the majority 
of the pages and supplying the information. This guide will be the June issue of Wyandotte 
Today and will include the Wyandotte Municipal Services 2019 Water Report. 

Community Publishing creates our Welcome to Wyandotte TODAY Magazine as well as our 
quarterly issues of Wyandotte Today. Because of this relationship and the quality of all city 
publications, we recommend working with them to produce our Wyandotte Street Art Fair 
Magazine. We feel this will be a wonderful partnership and are looking forward to working 
with them again! 

Although the City’s Procurement Policy would require three (3) written quotes for a purchase 
of $5,000, we are requesting that the City Council waive this requirement due to the continuing 
relationship we have with Community Publishing as described above. In our opinion, this 
relationship represents a Sole Source procurement situation due to the fact that this Guide Book 
will be included with the normally scheduled Wyandotte Today issue delivered in June. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: The City of Wyandotte hosts several quality of life events 
throughout the year. These events serve to purpose the goals of the City of Wyandotte by 
bringing our community together with citizen participation and supporting the local businesses 
and non-profit organizations.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: We feel that Community Publishing will provide excellent 
service and request your support of this contract.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: $5,000 – Wyandotte Street Art Fair 
Expense Account 285-225-925-860

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolutions and all necessary documents signed by Mayor 
Peterson and Lawrence Stec and will be forwarded to the Special Events Coordinator.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 



1. CPM Wyandotte water report inclusion within Q3 TODAY mags 2020 Proposal



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #5
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the Special Event Coordinator to 
approve the contract between the City of Wyandotte and Community Publishing in the amount of $5,000 for 
the 2020 WSAF Guide Book to be inserted in their June publication of the Wyandotte Today Magazine with 
funds to be paid from the WSAF Expense Account #285-225-925-860.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said contract on behalf of 
the City of Wyandotte.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



Community Publishing & Marketing
2020 TODAY Magazine Sponsorship
Prepared for the City of Wyandotte

Wyandotte TODAY 2020 Q3 Magazine Sponsorship

Our TODAY Magazines run quarterly and work in collaboration with the Cities and their intra-
departments, the DDA, the school districts, the chambers and the many businesses & residents to 
facilitate and deliver the Community’s message for free to every residence and business within their 
respective area.

Strategy

This marketing plan is to produce (create, design, layout, print, bind and mail) your water report 
within our Wyandotte TODAY 2020 Q3 Street Art Fair edition, which will be distributed to every 
residence and business within the City of Wyandotte per its legal obligations to its citizens.  It is our 
mission and distinct honor to work hand and hand with the City of Wyandotte, to incorporate their 
water report within our existing publication in order to create an aesthetically pleasing section while 
still complying with state’s needs of thoroughness, full disclosure and transparency to its constituents.    

Specs: 

 17,500 Wyandotte TODAY Street Art Fair Q3 2020 Magazines (approximately 12,000 mailing 
and balance (approx. 5,500) delivered to 1 location at the City of Wyandotte’s discretion)

 Extra copies of the standalone water report may be made available “at cost”
 Water report will run within text pages on:  60# c2s gloss text
 4 color process throughout
 8.25 x 10.75 trim (8.5 x 11 including 1/8” bleed all 4 sides)
 Saddle stitch along the 10.75 dimension (vertical pub)
 CPM will print this project with a company of its choosing (parent company Printwell)
 Entire creation, design, layout will be a collaboration with City of Wyandotte and CPM 
 CPM will produce a Digital Version of the TODAY magazine that will be accessible for both 

Android and Apple devices as well as on the City’s and CPM’s website.
 Total for the WSAF Magazine- $5,000 

Wyandotte Water Report to be inserted in the WSAF Magazine: To be paid from the WMS Expense 
Account. Payment per page: $600 per page (approximate total pages needed – between 4-8 pages)
Thus $2,400 - $4,800 total 



#6



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #6
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that Council approves the request from Mimi’s Mission to be recognized as a non-profit 
organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a Charitable Gaming License.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 

ITEM: State of Emergency-City of Wyandotte

 

PRESENTER: Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The City has been taking proactive steps to prevent and prepare for the 
spread of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19). As a result of this ongoing 
situation and the uncertainty of the impact on the City's residents and employees, it is necessary 
to authorize the Mayor or his designee to take steps to protect the health and safety of City 
residents and employees and to create reasonable flexibility to react and take action to the 
COVID-19 threat.  

Thus, it is recommended that a "State of Emergency" is declared as authorized under Section 10 
of of PA Act 390 of 1976 which will grant the Mayor and /or his designee the emergency 
powers provided within.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To deliver the finest services to the citizens of Wyandotte.
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt the attached Resolution declaring a State of Emergency 
under Section 10 of PA 390 of 1976.  

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Emergency powers afforded under the public act will be used 
judiciously to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens and employees of the City.  
The City Council will be kept abreast of all decisions.  

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: None



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #7
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, the City of WYANDOTTE (the "City") is taking proactive steps to prevent and prepare for the 
spread of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19);

WHEREAS, any widespread local outbreak of COVID-19 could hinder and/or cease operations of the City and 
overwhelm governmental services; including, Emergency Medical Services, Hospitals, Urgent Cares, utilities, 
Fire and Police services;

WHEREAS, the spread of COVID-19 falls within definitions of the Emergency Management Act of 1976, Act 
390 of 1976, represents an occurrence or threat of widespread or severe damage, injury or loss of life;

WHEREAS, as a result of this ongoing situation and the uncertainty of the impact to WYANDOTTE's 
residents and City employees, the City believes it is necessary to authorize the Mayor or his designee to take 
steps to protect the health and safety of City residents and employees and to create reasonable flexibility to 
react and take action to COVID-19 threat;

WHEREAS, the City shall require heightened and strict protocols for WYANDOTTE's Fire, Police, and Public 
Works Departments, when required to enter residences and for any interaction with the general public and shall 
work to limit face-to-face interactions between the City employees and potentially infected general public 
during daily business;

WHEREAS, it has become necessary based upon the above stated conditions for the City Council to declare by 
this Resolution a "State of Emergency" as authorized under Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976 and grant the 
Mayor or his designee the emergency powers and authority provided therein; including, but not limited to: 
authority to direct and coordinate the development of emergency operations plans and programs in accordance 
with the policies and plans established by the appropriate federal, state and local agencies; authority to 
appropriate and  expend funds, make contracts, and obtain and distribute equipment, materials, and supplies for 
disaster purposes and to maintain the operations and services of the City; authority to suspend or not enforce 
any or all City Ordinances, regulations, policies, or practices adverse to the health and safety of residents; 
authority to order closure of any governmental building, program, activity, meeting, or service; authority to 
suspend any activity, program or service with or without notice; authority to approve or add any service, 
function or activity deemed necessary to protect the health and safety of residents and employees; authority to 
provide for the health and safety of persons and property including providing emergency assistance and 
coordination of the local response to emergencies within the municipality; authority to appoint, employ, 
remove, or provide fire, police and other personnel as needed; authority to schedule, reschedule, restrict and/or 
cancel, with or without notice, any meeting of any City Board; Commission, or Sub-Committee, including any 
or all Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals or other City meeting and to otherwise restrict or 
impose reasonable safeguards for all approved meetings; authority to terminate or suspend any and all permits, 



licenses, or permissions granted by the City which are adverse to the health and safety of residents, including 
the termination or suspension of any application or existing solicitation permit, temporary retail permit or any 
other permit, license or permission reasonably expected to increase personal interaction or spread of the virus 
without appropriate safeguards;

WHEREAS, all City Departments, employees, consultants and independent contractors are hereby directed to 
keep records of all expenditures, costs and expenses incurred as a result of the City's response to this 
emergency situation;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by passage of this Resolution the WYANDOTE City Council, in 
accordance with Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976, as amended, hereby declares that a "State of Emergency" 
exists within our jurisdiction as of March 23rd, 2020, and that the City Mayor and his designee are hereby 
granted the above temporary authority and as otherwise provided by statute through May 4, 2020, unless 
extended;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, a certified copy of this resolution will be   by LEIN or facsimile to the 
Commanding Officer of the Emergency Management Division, Department of State Police (LEIN code: 
ELES), MSP Special Operations Division (LEIN code: ELOP), and the appropriate EMO District Coordinator, 
pursuant to Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976, as amended.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 

ITEM: Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act and Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion 
Act 

 

PRESENTER: Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: On March 18, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Emergency Paid 
Sick Leave Act as well as the Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion Act.  Pursuant to 
the provisions of those statutes, employers are authorized to exempt emergency medical 
responders from both the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act as well as the Emergency Family 
Medical Leave Expansion Act.  

As a result of the present state, the United States which is under a national state of emergency 
as authorized by President Donald Trump on March 13, 2020, as well as the state of emergency 
declared across the State of Michigan effective March 10, 2020, the City of Wyandotte, it is 
necessary to utilize the exemptions available in the aforementioned statutes in order to continue 
to provide the necessary services by our first responders as to the citizens of the City.  

Pursuant to the language in the statutes, which goes into effect on April 1, 2020, Section 3105, 
provides that an employer of an employee who is a health care provider or emergency 
responder may elect to exclude such employees from the application of these provision and the 
amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act.  Thus, the attached resolutions outlined the 
City’s intent to do so.  In effect, the following is being ordered from my office: 

The City of Wyandotte has determined effective, Monday, March 30, 2020 to exempt all 
emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Medical and Family Leave Expansion 
Act, and

The City of Wyandotte has determined effective, Monday, March 30, 2020 to exempt all 
emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act 
The attached resolutions will be affirmed by the City Council at the next regularly scheduled 
City Council meeting.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To provide the finest services to the citizens of the City of 
Wyandotte.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Concur with the recommendation to exclude the City's 



emergency responders from the provisions of the Emergency Medical and Family Leave 
Expansion Act and the provisions of the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act effective March 
30, 2020.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Department of Administration will facilitate any requests 
by employees relative to these Acts from the Federal Government.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Family Medical Leave Act. 3-30-2020
2. FMLA Sick Leave 3-30-2020



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #8
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE

RESOLUTION OF CITY OF WYANDOTTE EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY PAID 
SICK LEAVE ACT REGARDING COVID-19

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or death 
that can easily spread from person to person; and

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency across the State of 
Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of emergency due to the 
outbreak; and 

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of 
Representatives adopted House Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical Leave 
Expansion Act; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, Section 3105, 
special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  employer of an employee who 
is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect to exclude such employees from the 
application of this provision and the amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act; and 

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of the important and 
critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this emergency; and

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of City of Wyandotte remains the critical concern at present and 
the necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best interests of the residents of the City.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

 



1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, March 30, 2020 
exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE

RESOLUTION OF CITY EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY FAMILY MEDICAL 
LEAVE EXPANSION ACT REGARDING COVID-19

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or death 
that can easily spread from person to person; and

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency across the State of 
Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of emergency due to the 
outbreak; and 

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of 
Representatives adopted House Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical Leave 
Expansion Act; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, Section 3105, 
special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  employer of an employee who 
is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect to exclude such employees from the 
application of this provision and the amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act; and 

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of the important and 
critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this emergency; and

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of the City remains the critical concern at present and the 
necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best interests of the residents of the City.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

 

1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, March 30, 2020 
exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Medical and Family Leave 
Expansion Act 

 



I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



1

CITY OF WYANDOTTE

RESOLUTION OF CITY EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE EXPANSION ACT 
REGARDING COVID-19

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or 
death that can easily spread from person to person; and

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency across the 
State of Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of emergency due to 
the outbreak; and 

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of 
Representatives adopted House Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion 
Act; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, Section 3105, 
special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  employer of an employee who 
is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect to exclude such employees from the application 
of this provision and the amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act; and 

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of the important 
and critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this emergency; and

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of the City remains the critical concern at present and the 
necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best interests of the residents of the City.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, March 30, 2020 
exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Medical and Family Leave 
Expansion Act 

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Wyandotte, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held on the ____ day of 
March, 2020 and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and 
in full compliance with the open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the 
minutes of said meeting were kept and will or have been made available as required by said Act.

_________________________________
 

Dated: March __, 2020.



1

CITY OF WYANDOTTE

RESOLUTION OF CITY OF WYANDOTTE EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY PAID SICK 
LEAVE ACT REGARDING COVID-19

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in 
serious illness or death that can easily spread from person to person; and

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department 
of Health and Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency 
across the State of Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of 
emergency due to the outbreak; and 

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of 
Representatives adopted House Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical 
Leave Expansion Act; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, 
Section 3105, special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  
employer of an employee who is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect 
to exclude such employees from the application of this provision and the amendments made 
under Section 3102 of this Act; and 

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of 
the important and critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this 
emergency; and

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of City of Wyandotte remains the critical 
concern at present and the necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best 
interests of the residents of the City.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, 
March 30, 2020 exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency 
Paid Sick Leave Act 

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Wyandotte, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, at a regular 
meeting held on the ____ day of March, 2020 and that said meeting was conducted and public 
notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the open Meetings Act, 
being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept 
and will or have been made available as required by said Act.



2

_________________________________
Dated: March __, 2020.



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 

ITEM: Reappointment – Department of Legal Affairs

 

PRESENTER: Joseph R. Peterson
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Chapter VII, Subdivision 82, Section 7 of the City Charter, the 
department of legal affairs shall be in charge of the city attorney who shall be a member of the 
bar of the State of Michigan and an elector of the city. The city attorney shall be appointed for a 
term of two (2) years.

Look Makowski and Look, P.C. has submitted a proposal with an annual salary of $80,000.
 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with and enforce all the requirements of our laws 
and regulations.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt a resolution to reappoint Look, Makowski and Look PC 
as the City of Wyandotte’s Department of Legal Affairs. Term effective April 20, 2020 to 
April 19, 2022.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: $80,000 annually for two years. 
Account 101-200-825-330.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Provide copy of resolution and proposal to the Finance 
Department. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Department of Legal Affairs Proposal



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #9
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED by the City Council hereby re-appoints the firm of Look Makowski and Look, P.C. as the 
Department of Legal Affairs for the City of Wyandotte for a two-year term effective April 20, 2020 to April 19, 
2022 with a salary of $80,000 per year to come from Account Number 101-200-825-330.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   







CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 

ITEM: Appointment to Planning Commission

 

PRESENTER: Joseph R. Peterson
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: Bob Benson has served on the Planning Commission for several years.  His 
term expired April 2020.  Unfortunately Bob passed away on April 1, 2020, leaving a vacancy 
on the commission.

Resident Kelly Stec has submitted a resume and application and would be a qualified addition 
to the commission.   

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To encourage and respect citizen participation and provide 
transparency in all city matters and to comply with and enforce all the requirements of our laws 
and regulations.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt a resolution supporting the appointment Kelly Stec, as a 
member of the Planning  Term to expire April 2023.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: n/a
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Commission Application
2. Commission Application Background
3. Resume - Kelly Stec



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #10
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, a vacancy has occurred on the Planning Commission due to the death of Commissioner Bob 
Benson; and

WHEREAS, City Council extends their deepest condolences to the family of Bob Benson as well as thanks and 
appreciation for the service Bob has given to the City of Wyandotte; 

BE IT RESOLVED that City Council hereby CONCURS with the recommendation of Mayor Peterson to 
appoint Kelly Stec of 2414 15th St., Wyandotte, MI to the Planning Commission.  Term to expire April 2023.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



 

Boards and Commissions Application        Page | 1 

 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE, MICHIGAN 
APPLICATION FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 
A separate application is required for each board or commission you wish to join.  

Applications remain active for one year from the date of submittal.  
Resumes are encouraged and may be attached to your completed application. 

 

Name of Board or Commission for which you are applying 
 
 

Name 
 
 

Home Address: 
 
 

Work Address 

Home Phone 
 
 

Work Phone 

Cell Phone 
 
 

Email 
 

Please note your preferred method(s) of contact  
 

  Home Phone    Work Phone    Cell Phone    Email 
 

Residency, property or business ownership is required for most boards and commissions. 
 

 I am a resident. If so, for how many years? _______________ 
 

 I am a property owner. If so, for how many years? _______________ 
 

 I am a business owner. If so, for how many years? _______________ 

 
 

Provide a brief biography including your skills, background and expertise, as well as involvement in 
the community, professional or other nonprofit organizations that are specifically applicable to this 
board or commission.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission

Kelly Stec

2414 15th St. Wyandotte, MI 48192

734-778-3138 kellymstec@gmail.com

26

1

Please see attached Document--"Background"



 

Boards and Commissions Application        Page | 2 

 

Describe any experiences that led to your desire to serve the community. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Employment: List your most recent employment experiences. 
 

Company 
Name/Location 

Position Duties Dates of Employment 

 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 

   

 
Education: List your most recent educational experiences. 
 

Educational Institution/School Certificate/Degree Received  Dates 

 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 

  

 
 

Volunteerism: List your most recent volunteer experiences. 
 

Organization Role  Dates 

 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 

  

 
 
Supplemental Information: Please review our Guidelines for Boards and Commissions for the desired qualifications for 
each board and commission. Check the appropriate box or boxes to indicate whether you have experience or professional 
credentials that may be needed to fill a specific seat.  
 

Michigan Organization 
on Adolescent Sexual 
Health

Advocacy Director

Michigan State 
Legislature

Writer/
Legislative Director

01/2016-01/2020

01/2020-present

-Legislative and policy 
communications, 
-Lobbying and advocacy efforts
-Development of strategic plans 
-Youth training

Michigan Democratic 
Party

-Managed staff and 
volunteers
-Community liaison
-Organizing and planning events
-Communications

Type text here

08/2018-11/2018

Regional Field 
Director of Macomb 
County, 2018 election

Michigan State University Graduate work-
Education Policy

Michigan State University

Expected Masters 2021

Bachelors of Science Graduated 05/2014

Michigan Organization 
on Adolescent Sexual 
Health

Board Member/Advocacy 
Committee

03/2019-01/2020

American Federation of 
Teachers

Organizer, State Vice 
President, member of federal
policy council on higher ed

08/2014-01/2020

Please see attached Document--"Community"



 

Boards and Commissions Application        Page | 3 

 

Some boards and commissions are a mix of citizens with certain qualifications and others are citizens representing the 
general public. Even if you do not have any of the experience or professional background listed below, the community 
urges you to apply for consideration. Wyandotte needs citizens with diverse backgrounds on its boards and commissions.  
 
Important Public Records Information: All information submitted in this application is public information and subject to 
disclosure in response to a public records request made pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. Please contact the 
Clerk at 734-324-4560 or clerk@wyan.orgif you have any questions or concerns about the disclosure of specific 
information.  
 
Truth and Accuracy: I certify that the information contained on this form is accurate and complete to the best of my 
knowledge. I understand that all information disclosed on this form will be available to the public as part of a Freedom of 
Information Act request. 
 
__________________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Applicant’s Signature     Date 
 
 
Return completed forms to 
Office of the Mayor, City of Wyandotte, Michigan, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Suite 300, Wyandotte, MI 48192 
 
 
Please check below if you have experience in: 

 Advertising/Marketing/Public Relations 

 Architecture/Engineering 

 Arts/Culture/History 

 AutoCAD/Drafting/GIS 

 Business 

 Coaching/Sports 

 Construction/Carpentry 

 Electrical work/contracting 

 Education 

 Event Planning 

 Forestry 

 Horticulture 

 Landscape Architecture  

 Law  

 Planning/Zoning 

 Property Maintenance/Management 

 Plumbing work/contracting 

 Real Estate/Development 

 Gardening/Landscaping 

 Government 
 
 
 

 

04/01/2020

mailto:clerk@wyan.org


Background 
Until earlier this year, my professional life has been within the public sector. I have worked as 
both a Research and Teaching Assistant at Michigan State University and in both chambers of 
the Michigan State Legislature. Through this work, I have become familiar with Michigan law as 
well as how to navigate all public resources the state and nation offer. I have significant 
experience developing and reading policy, along with familiarity in how to research other states’ 
and communities’ laws and ordinances. I am also a quick but thorough communicator and have 
developed streamlined networks on how to create and edit communications to team members 
as well as the public. This work has also instilled a sense of pride in public service which 
translates well to serving on a local commission.  
 
My current work as an Advocacy Director at a statewide nonprofit has furthered my 
understanding of how to connect with those we serve, the importance of timely and effective 
communication with team members, and the need to be flexible under changing circumstances. 
COVID-19 has been a particular motivator for me to gain the skill sets of virtual meetings and 
understanding how to balance organizational needs with ever-changing legal guidance. As 
mentioned in the “Community” section, I chose to make Wyandotte my permanent home 
because in addition to my learned background, I have a deep-seated love of this community, 
and I remain internally motivated to give back to Wyandotte to the best of my ability. I believe 
the combination of my public service skill sets with my dedication to promoting and supporting 
our home makes me an ideal commission candidate.  
 
Community 
My family has been in Wyandotte for generations, but it was not until my time at Michigan State 
University that I recognized that what makes Wyandotte unique is that we remain a community, 
not just a city. My time working in the public sector, from leading Wyandotte Greenbox to 
serving as a Legislative Director at the Michigan House of Representatives, has been 
significantly informed by my internal sense of the importance of caring for people and building 
networks of support between them. 
 
I chose to make Wyandotte my permanent home because I believe in this community, and I feel 
it has the potential to continue to thrive as more living spaces across the world become 
impersonal and isolated. Through my work with the American Federation of Teachers, as well 
as my early volunteer experiences with MOASH prior to my hiring at the organization, I 
recognize that community cannot exist–let alone thrive–without the continued support and 
buy-in of its members. For this reason, I feel called to give back to the city which has given me 
one of my core values. I believe serving on a commission is the first step in my adult life of 
affirming Wyandotte’s importance and working towards ensuring the next generation grows up 
in a community, too. 



Kelly M. Stec 
2414 15 th St. Wyandotte, MI 48192 | 734-778-3138 | kellymstec@gmail.com  

Professional Experience 

ADVOCACY DIRECTOR | MICHIGAN ORGANIZATION ON ADOLESCENT SEXUAL HEALTH | JANUARY 2020-PRESENT 

· Internal and external communications, event planning, advocacy to state and local policymakers, youth education 

· Leadership roles on several statewide and national health policy organizations 

LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR | REPRESENTATIVE KEVIN HERTEL | JANUARY 2017-JANUARY 2020 

· Policy analysis and development, committee staffing, communications, office management 

REGIONAL FIELD DIRECTOR, MACOMB COUNTY | MICHIGAN DEMOCRATIC PARTY | AUGUST 2018-NOVEMBER 2018 

· Team management, relationship development with community leaders and elected officials, metrics and accountability 

WRITER | SENATOR CURTIS HERTEL, JR. | JANUARY 2016-DECEMBER 2016 

· Speechwriting, editing, communications, constituent casework, policy analysis and development 

RESEARCH ASSISTANT | MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY | AUGUST 2016-DECEMBER 2019 

· Creation and maintenance of policy databases, development of legislative trend narratives, legal landscape analysis  

 

Education 

EXPECTED MASTER OF EDUCATION | MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

· Degree: K-12 Administration, Focus: Connection between state and local policy 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE | 2014 | MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

· Degree: Cognitive Neuroscience with an additional degree in Psychology 

 

Key Qualifications 

PROFICIENCIES 

· Microsoft Office and Google Suite 

· LexisNexis  

· National Conference of State Legislatures databases 

· Knowledge of state legislature and executive branch processes 

· Strong relationships with legislative offices across party lines and with other key stakeholders 

ROLES SERVED 

· Board of Directors, Michigan Organization on Adolescent Sexual Health (2019-2020) 

· State Vice President, American Federation of Teachers – Michigan (2015-2019) 

· Featured Contributor, GovLoop (2018) 

· Higher Education Program and Policy Council Member, American Federation of Teachers (2016-2017) 



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

ITEM: City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Equipment and Replacement Fund

 

PRESENTER: Robert J. Szczechowski, Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: For the fiscal year ending 9/30/19, the Equipment and Replacement Fund 
reported deficits.  The Michigan Department of Treasury requires deficit elimination plans 
documenting the elimination of the deficits.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with all the requirements of our laws and 
regulations.
 
The plans will achieve the goal of eliminating the deficits, as required by the Michigan 
Department of Treasury.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt the resolution concurring with the Deputy 
Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director’s recommendation of the Construction Fund Deficit 
Elimination Plan.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolution and all necessary documents will be forwarded 
to the Michigan Department of Treasury for its approval.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Actual & Budget Projections - Equipment & Replacement Fund
2. State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #11
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, The financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Equipment and 
Replacement Fund; and

WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt A Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses said deficit 
in the Equipment and Replacement Fund; and

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the Deficit Elimination Plan to address the requirement; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director 
be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to ensure compliance 
with accounting requirements.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   

















CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 

ITEM: City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Construction Fund

 

PRESENTER: Robert J. Szczechowski, Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: For the fiscal year ending 9/30/19, the Construction Fund reported deficits.  
The Michigan Department of Treasury requires deficit elimination plans documenting the 
elimination of the deficits.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with all the requirements of our laws and 
regulations.
 
The plans will achieve the goal of eliminating the deficits, as required by the Michigan 
Department of Treasury.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt the resolution concurring with the Deputy 
Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director’s recommendation of the Construction Fund Deficit 
Elimination Plan.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolution and all necessary documents will be forwarded 
to the Michigan Department of Treasury for its approval.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Actual & Budget Projections - Construction Fund
2. State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #12
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, The financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Construction Fund; and

WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt a Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses said deficit 
in the Construction Fund; and

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the attached proposed Deficit Elimination Plan along with budget amendments 
to address the requirement; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director 
be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to ensure compliance 
with accounting requirements.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   

















CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

ITEM: City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority Fund

 

PRESENTER: Robert J. Szczechowski, Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: For the fiscal year ending 9/30/19, the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority Fund reported deficits.  The Michigan Department of Treasury requires deficit 
elimination plans documenting the elimination of the deficits.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To comply with all the requirements of our laws and 
regulations.
 
The plans will achieve the goal of eliminating the deficits, as required by the Michigan 
Department of Treasury.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt the resolution concurring with the Deputy 
Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director’s recommendation of the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority Fund Deficit Elimination Plan.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The resolution and all necessary documents will be forwarded 
to the Michigan Department of Treasury for its approval.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Actual & Budget Projections - Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund
2. Unrestricted Net Asset Calculation_Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund
3. State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #13
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, The financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority Fund; and

WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt A Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses said deficit 
in the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund; and

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the attached proposed Deficit Elimination Plan to address the requirement; now 
therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan for the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority Fund; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance Director 
be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to ensure compliance 
with accounting requirements.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



















CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

ITEM: Police Department-Purchase of Body Worn Cameras

 

PRESENTER: Brian Zalewski
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: For the last year, the police department has been researching the purchase 
and implementation of Law Enforcement Body Worn Cameras (BWC).  On January 22nd, 
2020, the police department placed a request for proposal (RFP) file #4777 on the Michigan 
Inter-Governmental Network (MITN) to solicit bids for this purchase. To summarize the bid 
proposal, it was for (35) BWC’s, one assigned to each officer, (3) spare cameras, camera 
specifications, accessories, and a video storage solution.  A total of six sealed bids were 
received by the City Clerk’s Office and they were opened on February 10th, 2020.  
 
After review of each proposal, the police department is requesting approval to purchase BWC’s 
from the company Axon. Axon met all specifications, needs, and requirements, it also includes 
Evidence.Com storage and redaction software. They hold a MIDEAL Contract # 071B4300067, 
and the purchase price is the lowest that met the proposal requirements.  By purchasing the 
cameras from Axon, and utilizing Evidence.com, this will provide a service that offers a secure 
link with the Wayne County Prosecutor’s Office. The Prosecutors Office recently partnered 
with Evidence.com to provide them with a video storage software program for the upload of 
video evidence in criminal cases. This ability will permit our agency to confidently share 
crucial pieces of evidence with the prosecutor’s office. 
 
The initial purchase price from Axon is $63, 917.00.  The police department would also enter in 
to a total assurance plan with Axon at a cost of $31,730.00 per year for the next five years.  By 
entering in to this plan, it would provide replacement of the BWC if a new generation Axon 
camera is developed, storage of video evidence, and extended coverage. After the sixth year, 
the total cost of this purchase would be $190,837.00. This total cost was the lowest proposal 
that met our bid specifications and requirements. 
 
The Police Commission approved the purchase of Axon Body Worn Camera’s at their 
scheduled meeting on March 10th, 2020.  The City Attorney has reviewed the Axon proposal 
purchase agreement and has approved as to form. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: The purchase of Body Worn Cameras will support and assist 
officers in performing their duties, protect against false accusations, and provide video evidence 
to support criminal investigations and resolution of complaints. 



 

ACTION REQUESTED: To concur with the police department and approve the purchase 
of Body Worn Cameras from Axon.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The funds for this purchase are 
available in account # 101-301-850-540 of the police department budget.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Once approved for purchase, we will enter in to an agreement 
with Axon, schedule training for officers, and then assign and distribute the BWC's for use.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Letter to Police Commision-BWC
2. Bid Deposit Log Sheet-Clerks Office BWC
3. Axon Bid Proposal-BWC



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #14
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council concurs with the approval to  purchase Body 
Worn Cameras from Axon (Bid File #4777) in the amount of $63,917.00, enter in to an Total Assurance Plan 
agreement for (5) years in the amount of $31,730.00. each year, with total cost after 6 years in the amount of 
$190,837.00; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL authorizes the police department to proceed with 
this purchase.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   





























CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

ITEM: 1st Amendment to Maintenance Agreement w/ Wayne Metropolitan Community 
Action Agency

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The City and  Wayne Metropolitan Community Action Agency (Wayne 
Metro) have a Maintenance Agreement for the maintenance of property adjacent to the Joseph 
R. Peterson Justice Building.  This Agreement has expired.  Therefore, attached for your 
consideration is the 1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement.   This 1st Amendment will 
expire in July, 2027 and requires Wayne Metro to pay $28,125 per year.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: 

This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and Objectives identified in the City of 
Wyandotte’s Strategic Plan 2010-2015.

 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the 1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement 
between the City and Wayne Metro and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
same. 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Payments will be deposited into 
Account  No, 101-000-655-049

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Execute 1st Amendment and collect payments. 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement Wayne Metro



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #15
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL that the communication from the City Engineer 
regarding the 1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement between the City of Wyandotte and Wayne 
Metropolitan Community Action Agency is hereby approved; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said 1st Amendment 
as presented to Council. 
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   





















CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

ITEM: Bid File #4719: Waste Management Contract Amendment

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: Waste Management has submitted a request to convert rear load dumpsters 
to front load dumpsters wherever possible.  This is a safety related request in an effort to reduce 
injuries to employees.  

The proposed Waste Management Contract Amendment covers the addition of front load style 
dumpsters to the Contract and a clarification of bulk item pickup responsibilities.

I recommend approval of the attached contract amendment.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte's Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City services.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Contract Amendment to Waste Management's 
Contract for File #4719 Solid Waste Collection Program.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: No budget implications.
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to execute 
the contract amendment.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. WM Contract Amendment 032020
2. WM Container Conversion Request



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #16
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Resolved by City Council that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves 
the contract amendment to Waste Management's Contract for File #4719 Solid Waste Collection Program, and 
further, authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said contract amendment.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 
File #4719 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

 
ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT AMENDING the Contract made and entered into on February 8, 
2018 by and between the CITY OF WYANDOTTE, party of the first part, and Waste 
Management of Michigan, Inc. (Waste Management), of 48797 Alpha Drive, Suite 100, Wixom, 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan, party of the second part, to-wit: 

1. This contract shall be amended as follows: 

The first paragraph of Sec. III. Service Description, Subparagraph A. Solid Waste Collection 
and Disposal Program: shall be amended to read as follows: 

Once a week collection and transportation of all solid waste placed at curbside for 
all residential units up to five (5) units, commercial non dumpster users, and 
industrial non dumpster users.  Collected solid waste shall be transported to the 
Riverview Landfill for disposal. City will pay tipping fee at landfill.  This 
includes all properties in the City unless they contract separately for collection 
service.  Contractor is responsible for bulk item collection; however, this does not 
include the removal of mass disposal of bulk refuse, domestic rubbish, garbage, 
solid waste and special refuse generated from site evictions, foreclosures, move-
outs or construction/renovations, which shall be the responsibility of the property 
owner.  Currently, there are 10,237 units.  Yard waste and recyclables shall be 
collected separately based on the bid item. 

The following paragraph shall be added to Sec. III. Service Description, Subparagraph A. 
Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Program: Bulk Item or Special Refuse Collection: 

This does not include the removal of mass disposal of bulk refuse, domestic 
rubbish, garbage, solid waste and special refuse generated from site evictions, 
foreclosures, move-outs or construction/renovations. 

The first paragraph of Sec. III. Service Description, Subparagraph B. Dumpsters: shall be 
amended to read as follows: 

The Contractor will provide pickup service for REAR LOAD AND FRONT 
LOAD DUMPSTERS.  Any new customers are limited to 1, 2, 3, or 4 cubic yard 
dumpster size.  There are 471.75 dumpster pickups per week (see Exhibit F).  The 
Contractor will dump rear load and front load dumpsters on designated business 
days Monday thru Friday and transport the contents to the Riverview Landfill. 
The Contractor may co-mingle regular collections with dumpster collections.  The 
rear load dumpsters are all supplied by the business owners. The City of 
Wyandotte invoices for this service and the Contractor is not involved in the 
billing process.  The Contractor must warrant to the City that if business owners 
contact the Contractor regarding dumpster service, the Contractor must refer 
business owners to the City of Wyandotte Department of Public Service for 
dumpster service.   It is not the intent of this Agreement for the Contractor or its 
subsidiaries to compete for business with the City.  Contractor has requested that 
all applicable real load dumpsters be converted to front load style dumpsters in 



every possible service situation.  The front load dumpsters shall be furnished by 
Contractor and shall be owned, serviced, maintained and replaced as needed by 
Contractor at no cost to the City or the customer.  Contractor will coordinate and 
perform, with the City’s input and approval, the removal of the rear load 
dumpsters and replacement with front load dumpsters, and shall dispose of the 
rear load dumpsters as directed by the City.    

The first paragraph of Sec. IV. Disposal Sites:, Paragraph A. Solid Waste: shall be amended 
to read as follows: 

Collected solid waste from residential, commercial and rear load or front load 
dumpsters will be transported to the City of Riverview Land Preserve.  The City 
of Wyandotte will pay the City of Riverview monthly based on material 
delivered.  

2. The unit prices and contract conditions will remain the same as in the original contract. 
3. Except as otherwise stated above, all of the terms of the original contract remain in full 

force and effect. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, said parties have hereunto set their hands and seals, in duplicate, the 
day and year as written below. 

PARTY OF THE FIRST PART    CITY OF WYADOTTE 
         

___________________________ 
        Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor 
             
        ___________________________ 
        Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 
 
 
 
PARTY OF THE SECOND PART    Waste Management of Michigan, Inc 
 
DATE:  _____________________    ___________________________ 
 
____________________________    ___________________________ 

WITNESS  





CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

ITEM: Bid File #4707: Contract Extension - Asphalt Resurfacing Program

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering and Building has met with Al's Asphalt 
Paving Co. of Taylor, Michigan, regarding extension of their contract for the 2020 Asphalt 
Resurfacing Program.  Al's Asphalt has agreed to perform this year's resurfacing project at the 
unit rates set forth in the contract with the City for File #4707.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City infrastructure.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve award of contract extension to Al's Asphalt.
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The 2020 Asphalt Resurfacing 
Program would be funded through the following accounts totaling $2,200,000.
    Major Street Fund     202-440-825-460     $542,000
    Local Street Fund     203-440-825-460     $842,000
    TIFA Street Fund     492-200-825-460     $816,000

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to execute 
the contract extension.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Signed Contract Extension
2. 2020 Street Program



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #17
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the 
contract extension of Bid File #4707 for Al's Asphalt Paving Co. in the amount of $2,200,000 paid from the 
following accounts:  $542,000 from account #202-440-825-460, $842,000 paid from account #203-440-825-
460, $816,000 paid from account #492-200-825-460.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   





$542,000 $842,000 $0 $816,000 $2,200,000

Major Street Fund Local Street Fund TIFA - Major TIFA - Local CDBG

202-440-825-460 203-440-825-460 492-200-825-460 492-200-825-460 283-200-875-684

Resurfacing:

Pennsylvania (Quarry - Railroad) $30,000

Pine (17th - 19th) $111,000

20th (Vinewood - Ford Ave) $382,000

North Drive (4th - Alfred) $160,000

Alfred (North Dr. - Emmons) $36,000

21st (Eureka - Oak) $211,000

23rd (Goddard - Ford Ave.) $520,000

2nd (Emmons - Riverbank) $270,000

2nd (Oak - Maple) $160,000

Sycamore (12th - 15th) $218,000

Elm (6th - 7th) $132,000

Joint & Crack Sealing:

Asphalt Streets East of Tracks $261,000 $269,000

Concrete Reconstruction:

Concrete Patches:

Antoine (10th Intersection) $40,000

Railroad Approaches:

St Johns (via Con Rail grant) $14,000

Emmons (via Con Rail grant) $19,000

Expenditures:

2020 Subtotal Expenditures $906,000 $842,000

Revenue:

2020 Available Revenue Budgeted $992,212 $923,696

MDOT Additional Revenue

Total Revenue $992,212 $923,696

Needed from Fund Balance None None

Fund Balance $86,212 $81,696 -

$951,830

$133,170

2020 Street Repairs
(Asphalt Resurfacing, Joint & Crack Sealing, Concrete Reconstruction, & Concrete Patching)

$1,085,000

$951,830



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 

ITEM: Bid File #4757: Contract Extension - Bituminous Street Joint & Crack Sealing 
Program

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering and Building has met with Michigan Joint 
Sealing, Inc. of Farmington Hills, Michigan, regarding extension of their contract for the 2020 
Bituminous Street Joint & Crack Seal Program.  Michigan Joint Sealing has agreed to perform 
this year's project at the unit rates set forth in the contract with the City for File #4757.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City infrastructure.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve award of contract extension to Michigan Joint Sealing.
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The 2020 Bituminous Street Joint & 
Crack Sealing Program would be funded through the following accounts totaling $530,000.
    Major Street Fund     202-440-825-460     $261,000
    TIFA Street Fund     492-200-825-460     $269,000

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to execute 
the contract extension.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Joint Seal Contract Extension



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #18
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the 
contract extension of Bid File #4757 for Michigan Joint Sealing in the amount of $530,000 which shall be paid 
from the following accounts:  $261,000 from account #202-440-825-460 and $269,000 paid from account 
#492-200-825-460.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   





CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 

ITEM: Bid File #4726: Contract Extension - Grass Cutting Services

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering and Building has met with U.S. Lawns of 
Livonia regarding extension of their contract for the 2020 Grass Cutting Services.  U.S. Lawns 
of Livonia has agreed to perform this year's services at the unit rates set forth in the contract 
with the City for File #4726.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City owned lots and parks..

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve award of contract extension to U.S. Lawns of Livonia.
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The 2020 Grass Cutting 
Services would be funded through the following accounts totaling $70,944.
    TIFA Property Maintenance Account     492-200-850-520     $60,192
    Memorial Park Grass Cutting                 101-448-825-480     $10,752

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to execute 
the contract extension.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. us lawns contract extension



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #19
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and APPROVES 
the contract extension of Bid File #4726 for U.S. Lawns of Livonia in the amount of $70,944 paid from the 
following accounts:  $60,192 from account #492-200-850-520 and $10,752 paid from account #101-448-825-
480.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   





CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 

ITEM: Bid File #4778: Demolition of Various Structures

 

PRESENTER: Gregory Mayhew, City Engineer 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The Engineering and Building Department solicited bids from the approved 
list of demolition contractors (Pro Excavation, Homrich, and 21st Century) for the demolition 
of the structures listed below:

351 HUDSON STREET
2303 3RD STREET
569 ORANGE STREET
616 ORANGE STREET
405 CHERRY STREET
321 SYCAMORE STREET
425-429 ST. JOHNS STREET
2557 BIDDLE AVENUE
2533 BIDDLE AVENUE 
863 8TH STREET

Only one bid was received, submitted by Pro Excavation, Inc., which was opened by the City 
Clerk at 2:00 PM on February 24, 2020 (Bid File #4778). The bid was in the amount of 
$246,000.00. The Engineering Department recommends that City Council accept and approve 
the bid submitted by Pro Excavation, Inc., Wyandotte, Michigan, to demolish these listed 
structures.

The Engineering Department contacted 21st Century and Homrich and inquired as to why they 
did not submit a bid.  Both indicated they were not able to submit a bid at this time, but will 
continue to watch for future projects.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in continuing to provide citizens with a 
community free of hazardous and unsightly structures.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve awarded the Demolition of Various Structures to Pro 
Excavation, Inc. in the amount of $246,000. 

 



BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Demolition of Various Structures 
will be funded from Account 492-200-850-519 Land Purchases, in the amount of $ 264,000.00 

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by City Council, authorize the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the contract.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. #4778 BID TAB
2. #4778 PRO EXCAVATION



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #20
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the award for 
Bid File #4778 to Pro Excavation of Wyandotte, MI, for the Demolition of Various Structures in the amount of 
$264,000, and authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to proceed with the execution of this contract, and,

FURTHER RESOLVED the project will be funded from account 492-200-850-519 in the amount of $264,000 
for the demolition of structures at:

351 HUDSON STREET
2303 3RD STREET
569 ORANGE STREET
616 ORANGE STREET
405 CHERRY STREET
321 SYCAMORE STREET
425-429 ST. JOHNS STREET
2557 BIDDLE AVENUE
2533 BIDDLE AVENUE 
863 8TH STREET
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   











CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 

ITEM: Composting Agreement

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engneer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: Attached for your consideration is a Composting Agreement between the 
City of Wyandotte and Regulated Resource Recovery, Inc. (RRR) to provide processing of 
compost materials such as leaves, grass, clippings, brush and organic yard waste from the City's 
Recycling Center to RRR's facility.  The City has has a contract with RRR for several years at 
the same unit rate of $8.75 per cubic yard..

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to creating fiscal stability, streamlining 
government operations, make government more accountable and transparent to its citizens and 
making openness, ethics and customer service the cornerstone of our City government.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Composting Agreement and authorize the Mayor 
to sign said agreement .

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Composting processing tipping fees 
would be paid out of Account 290-448-825-491 Compost Tipping Fee.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Execute Composting Agreement and deliver compost materials 
to RRR.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. RRR Compost Agreement April 2020



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #21
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED by the City Council that Council approves the Composting Agreement with Regulated Resource 
Recovery, Inc. to provide processing of compost materials for the City at the unit rate of $8.75 per cubic yard, 
and

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to execute said Composting Agreement.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   







RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #22
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 

AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
SECTIONS 2-206(1), 2-206(2) DEFINITION OF “FINAL AVERAGE COMPENSATION” 2-206 

DEFINTION OF “POLICEMAN OR FIREMAN MEMBER”, 2-206 DEFINITION OF “VOLUNTARY 
RETIREMENT AGE”, 2-207(c),(1),(4) “MEMBERSHIP”, 2-214 “POLICEMAN AND FIREMAN MEMBER 

RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE”, 2-221(b) “RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE OPTIONS”, AND 2-245(b) 
“SPECIAL SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT BENEFIT ALLOWANCE” OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE.

The City of Wyandotte Ordains:

Section 1. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of “Final Average 
Compensation”

Sec. 2-206. Definitions

Final Average Compensation means:

1. For general members, the average of any three (3) consecutive years of a member's credited service 
producing the highest total amount of said member's base wage plus the average longevity payments made to 
the member during the last three (3) years of his employment, effective October 6, 1980. If a member has less 
than three (3) years of credited service, his final average compensation received by him during his total period 
of credited service. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective October 5, 1987, for members of 
the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, and for 
members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.), final average compensation (except in the 
case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's 
accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick 
leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's final average compensation more than ten (10) per cent. 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for nonunion general members, 
for members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 
894, and members of the F.O.P. police/fire dispatcher/clerical, final average compensation (except in the case 
of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's 
accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick 
leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's final average compensation more than twenty-five (25) per 
cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 2000, for nonunion general 
members and for members of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 

Final Reading #1485



(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) consecutive 
years of compensation, and includes all base wages, overtime, and longevity. Final average compensation 
(except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include 
accrued sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a 
member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein 
to the contrary, effective February 1, 2013, for nonunion general members, and June 30, 2013, for members of 
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final average 
compensation means the average of the highest three (3) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all 
base wages, and longevity. Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's 
resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The 
accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation by more than 
twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, effective January 1, 1999, for members of 
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final average 
compensation means the average of the highest three (3) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all 
base wages, overtime, and longevity.  Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, 
a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on 
retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation 
by more than twenty-five (25) per cent. 

2. For police members, the best twelve (12) months of compensation plus holiday pay for the three hundred 
sixty-five-day period preceding the effective date of retirement plus longevity contained in the last year of 
credited service, effective October 6, 1980. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 
1, 1987, for members of the patrol officers bargaining unit only, final average compensation (except in the case 
of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's 
accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick 
amounts shall in no event increase a member's final average compensation more than ten (10) per cent. 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, for police members and police department command officers, 
final average compensation means the best twelve (12) consecutive months of compensation, plus longevity 
contained in the last year of credited service, and shall also include holiday pay for the three hundred sixty-
five-day period preceding the effective date of retirement, effective October 5, 1981. Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for police members and police department command 
officers, final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a 
member's discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, 
provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's 
final average compensation more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, effective February 1, 1999, for police patrol members and February 1, 2000, for police command 
members, final average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) out of the last ten (10) years of 
compensation, and includes all base wages, shift differential, eligible overtime as defined in the collective 
bargaining agreement, annual payments of accrued compensatory time, longevity pay, and holiday pay. Final 
average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 
discharge) will also include sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts 
shall not increase a member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.  
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective January 1, 2020, for police patrol and command 
officers hired after February 1, 1999, final average compensation means the average of the highest sixty (60) 
consecutive months of base wages out of the last ten (10) consecutive years.   For fire members "final average 
compensation" means the best twelve (12) months of compensation plus longevity contained in the last year of 



credited service, effective October 4, 1976, and "final average compensation" shall also include holiday pay for 
the three hundred sixty-five-day period preceding the effective date of retirement, effective October 5, 1981. 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1987, for fire members, final average 
compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) 
shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided however, that said 
accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's final average compensation by 
more than ten (10) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for 
fire members, final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation 
or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, 
provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's 
final average compensation more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, effective February 1, 2000, for fire members, final average compensation means the average of the 
highest three (3) out of the last ten (10) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base wages, ALS 
premium pay, overtime, longevity, food allowance and holiday pay. Final average compensation (except in the 
case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick 
and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's 
final average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, effective February 1, 2012, for fire members final average compensation means the average of the 
highest three (3) consecutive years out of the last ten (10) years of compensation, and includes all base wages, 
ALS premium pay, food allowance and holiday pay for this time period. Final average compensation (except in 
the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued 
sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a 
member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.  Notwithstanding anything herein 
to the contrary, effective January 1, 2016, for fire members, final average compensation means the average of 
the highest three (3) out of the last ten (10) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base wages, 
ALS premium pay, eligible overtime as defined in the collective bargaining agreement, longevity, food 
allowance and holiday pay. Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a 
member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on 
retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation 
by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.

Section 2. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of 
“Policeman or Fireman Member” in Subparagraph (1)

Sec. 2-206. Definitions

Member means any person who is included in the membership of the retirement system as set forth below:

1. Policeman or fireman member  means any member who is employed in the police or fire departments of the 
city holding the rank of patrolman or pipeman, including probationary patrolman or pipeman, or higher rank. 
The term "policeman or fireman member" shall not include (i) any person who is privately employed as a 
policeman or a fireman, (ii) any person who is temporarily employed as a policeman or fireman for any 
emergency, (iii) any civilian employee in the police or fire departments, , (iii) any civilian employee in the 
police or fire departments, (iv) any police patrol member hired between after February 1, 1999, and December 
31, 2019, who did not elect to join the system as of January 1, 2020, (v) any police command member hired 
between after February 1, 1999 and December 31, 2019, who did not elect to join the system as of January 1, 



2020, and (vi) any fireman member hired after October 1, 2000.

2. Hospital member  means any member who is employed in the Wyandotte General Hospital.   

3. Municipal service member  means any member who is employed in the municipal service department of the 
city.   

4. General member  means any member, including nonunion administrative, technical, and clerical employees 
and members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 
894, and members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.), except (i) a policeman or 
fireman member, (ii) a hospital member, (iii) a municipal service member, (iv) nonunion administrative, 
technical, or clerical employees of the city hired after October 1, 1999, (v) members of the American 
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired after March 31, 2000, 
(vi) nonunion administrative, technical, or clerical employees of the city hired before October 1, 1999, who 
voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in 
effect at that time, (vii) members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the 
retirement system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time, (viii) members of the Police 
Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.)—Dispatchers/clerical bargaining unit hired after July 1, 2001, 
(ix) members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.)—Dispatchers/clerical bargaining unit 
hired before July 1, 2001, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on June 30, 
2002, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time, and (x) members of the American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to 
leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2013, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time.
Section 3. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of 
“Voluntary Retirement Age”

Sec. 2-206. Definitions

Voluntary Retirement Age means the applicable age set forth below:

1. For a police member hired prior to February 1, 1999, the first to occur, (i) fifty-five (55) years of age, or (ii) 
twenty-five (25) years of credited service and at least age fifty (50), effective October 4, 1976. For a police 
member hired after February 1, 1999, the first to occur, (i) fifty-five (55) years of age and twenty-five (25) 
years of credited service or (ii) sixty (60) years of age with ten (10) years of credited service. 

2. For a fire member, the first to occur of (i) fifty-five (55) years of age, or (ii) fifty (50) years of age and thirty 
(30) years of credited service, effective October 3, 1977. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
effective February 1, 1990, for a fire member, twenty-five (25) years of credited service without regard to age, 
or age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited service.   

3. Age sixty (60) years for a hospital member.   

4. For an hourly municipal service member, age sixty (60) years, or (ii) the age at which he acquires thirty (30) 
years of credited service. Effective January 1, 1988, for an exempt or nonexempt salaried municipal service 
member only, the first to occur of (i) age sixty (60) years, or (ii) the age at which he acquires twenty-five (25) 



years of credited service.   

5. For a general member, the first to occur of (i) age fifty-five (55) years, or (ii) the age at which he acquires 
twenty-five (25) years of credited service, effective October 4, 1976. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for a general member, twenty-five (25) years of credited service without 
regard to age, or age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited service   
Section 4. Amendment of Subparagraphs (c)(1) and (4) of Sec. 2-207. “Membership”
Sec. 2-207. Membership
(a) The membership of the retirement system shall include all persons who are, and who become, officers or 
employees of the city, except as provided in subsection (b) of this section. 

(b) The membership of the retirement system, effective April 1992, shall not include: 

1) Elective and appointive officials who are not in full time employment with the city;   

2) Any person whose services are compensated on a fee or contractual basis;   

3) Any person in a position normally working less than eighty (80) hours per month;   

4) Any person hired on a temporary part-time seasonal, co-op, internship or emergency or volunteer basis, 
including crossing guards and park rangers;   

5) The medical director and actuary;   

6) Any person who cannot complete the minimum credited service requirements, other than those eligible 
under section 2-262 dealing with the Reciprocal Retirement Act;   

7) Any person in receipt of retirement allowance from the City of Wyandotte Employee's Retirement System.   

(c) In addition to the exclusions identified in (b) above, membership of the retirement system shall not include: 

1) Any police patrol member hired between after February 1, 1999, and December 31, 2019, who did not elect 
to join the system effective January 1, 2020.   
  
2) Any nonunion administrative technical or clerical employees of the city hired after October 1, 1999;   

3) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 
894, hired after March 31, 2000;   

4) Any police command member hired between after February 1, 1999, and December 31, 2019, who did not 
elect to join the system effective January 1, 2020

5) Any fireman member hired after October 1, 2000;   

6) Any nonunion administrative, technical, or clerical employee of the city hired before October 1, 1999, who 
voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in 



effect at that time;   

7) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 
894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on 
March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time;   

8) Any member of the dispatch/clerical bargaining unit hired after July 2, 2001;   

9) Any member of the dispatch/clerical bargaining unit hired before July 1, 2002, who voluntarily elected to 
leave membership of the retirement system on June 30, 2002, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time;   

10) Any municipal service employee hired after September 30, 2006;   

11) Any municipal service employee hired before October 1, 2006, who voluntarily elected to leave 
membership of the retirement system.   

12) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 
894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on 
March 31, 2013, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time.   

(d) In all cases of doubt, the commission shall decide who is a member of the system within the meaning of this 
article. 
Section 5. Amendment of Sec. 2-214. “Policeman and Fireman Member Retirement 
Allowance” by adding a provision guaranteeing a minimum straight life pension taking effect January 1, 2020 
for police members

Sec. 2-214. Policeman and Fireman Member Retirement Allowance

Effective February 1, 1999 for patrol police members and February 1, 2000 for command police members, 
hired after October 1, 1982, retroactive to date of hire, shall receive a straight life retirement allowance and 
shall have the right to elect a retirement allowance under an option provided in section 2-221 in lieu of a 
straight life retirement allowance. The straight life retirement allowance shall equal the sum of: 

(1) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions standing to his credit in 
the annuity savings fund at the time of his retirement; and  
 
(2) A pension which when added to his annuity will provide a retirement allowance equal to the number of 
years and months of credited service, not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and one-half (2½) 
per cent, times the final average compensation plus the number of years and months of credited service in 
excess of twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent times the final average compensation.   

Maximum benefit is seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation. Members will make pretax 
contributions of five (5) per cent from all income included in the final average compensation.

Effective February 1, 2000, a fireman member, retroactive to date of hire, shall be guaranteed a minimum 
straight life pension equal to: 



(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service not to 
exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by and two and one-half (2½) per cent of his final average 
compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in excess of twenty-
five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average compensation, but not to exceed 
seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less   

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing to his 
credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of the 1971 
group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of six (6) per cent 
per year, compounded annually. Effective February 1, 2000, interest will be applied at five (5) per cent per 
year, compounded annually.   

Effective September 16, 2005, a fireman member who is an active member on October 1, 1982 who retires 
within sixty (60) days after the attainment of twenty-five (25) years of credited service as a fire member 
(provided said retirement occurs subsequent to September 16, 2005), or who retires subsequent to September 
16, 2005 and no later than November 15, 2005, shall be eligible for a minimum straight life pension equal to: 

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service not to 
exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and four-fifths (2.80) per cent of his final average 
compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in excess of twenty-
five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average compensation, but not to exceed 
seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less   

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing to his 
credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of the 1971 
group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of six (6) per cent 
per year, compounded annually.   

A command police member who is an active member on October 1982 shall be guaranteed a minimum straight 
life pension equal to: 

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service not to 
exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and one-half (2½) per cent of his final average compensation, 
plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in excess of twenty-five (25) years, 
if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average compensation, but not to exceed seventy-five (75) per 
cent of final average compensation; less   

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing to his 
credit at the time of retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of the 1971 group 
annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of six (6) per cent per year, 
compounded annually.   

Effective October 16, 2001, a command police member who is an active member on October 1, 1982 who 
retires within thirty (30) days after the attainment of twenty-five (25) years of credited service as a police 
member provided said retirement occurs subsequent to October 16, 2001 (but in no case have cumulative 



credited service in excess of thirty (30) years) will be eligible for a minimum straight life pension equal to: 

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service not to 
exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and four-fifths (2.80) per cent of his final average 
compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in excess of twenty-
five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average compensation, but not to exceed 
seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less   
(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing to his 
credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of the 1971 
group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of six (6) per cent 
per year, compounded annually.   

Effective January 1, 2020, for police members hired after February 1, 1999, shall be guaranteed a minimum 
straight life pension equal to:
(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service, 
multiplied by two (2) per cent of his final average compensation, but not to exceed seventy (70) per cent of 
final average compensation.

Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this section to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, as it relates to 
police or fire members and police department command officers, the city expressly reserves the right to waive, 
maintain or alter the provisions of this section, provided however, in no event shall any pension benefits set 
forth in this article be lessened or reduced as a result of waiving, maintaining, or altering any provisions 
thereof.

Section 6. Amendment of Subparagraph (b) of Sec. 2-221. “Retirement Allowance Options”

Sec. 2-221. Retirement Allowance Options

(a) Subject to the provisions of subsection (b) hereinafter set forth, prior to the effective date of his retirement, 
but not thereafter, a member may elect to receive his retirement allowance as a straight life retirement 
allowance payable throughout his life, or he may elect to receive the actuarial equivalent, computed as of the 
effective date of his retirement, of his straight life retirement allowance in a reduced retirement allowance 
payable throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of option 1, 2 or 3 set 
forth below. If a member does not elect an option prior to the effective date of his retirement, his retirement 
allowance shall be paid him as a straight life retirement allowance. 

(1) Option 1—Cash refund annuity.  Under option 1 a retirant shall receive a reduced retirement allowance 
payable throughout his life with the provisions that if he dies before he has received in payment of the annuity 
portion of his reduced retirement allowance an aggregate amount equal to his accumulated contributions 
standing to his credit in the annuity savings fund at the time of his retirement, the difference between his said 
accumulated contributions and the said aggregate amount of annuity payments received by him shall be paid to 
such person or persons as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the 
commission. If there be no such designated person surviving the retirant, such difference, if any, shall be paid 
to the retirant's legal representative.   

(2) Option 2—Joint and survivor allowance.  Under option 2 a retirant shall receive a reduced retirement 



allowance payable throughout his life with the provisions that upon his death his reduced retirement allowance 
shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an insurable interest in his life, as he 
shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the commission prior to the effective 
date of his retirement.   

(3) Option 3—Modified joint and survivor allowance.  Under option 3 a retirant shall receive a reduced 
retirement allowance payable throughout his life with the provision that upon his death one-half his reduced 
retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an insurable 
interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the 
commission prior to the effective date of his retirement. 
  
(b) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this section to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, as it relates 
to police members hired before February 1, 1999, police department command officers hired before February 
1, 1999, members of the F.O.P. police/fire dispatcher/clerical bargaining unit, fire members and general 
members, and effective October 1, 1995 for hourly municipal members, and effective June 6, 1990 for salaried 
municipal service members, if said member has elected either an option 2 or option 3 prior to the effective date 
of his retirement and the retirant and the nominated beneficiary become legally divorced or the beneficiary 
nominated in accordance with either option dies prior to said retirant, then in either case the retirant's retirement 
allowance shall be paid to him as a straight life retirement allowance as of the date of the entry of the judgment 
of divorce or the date of death of said nominated beneficiary, as the case may be. 

(c) Effective September 16, 1996, all general city, police and fire employees who retired on or before January 
31, 1990 and received a monthly pension payroll paycheck on September 15, 1996 with said retiree selecting 
either an option 2 or option 3 survivorship retirement benefit prior to the effective date of his retirement and the 
beneficiary nominated in accordance with either option having died prior to said retirement, then the retirant's 
retirement allowance shall be paid as a straight life retirement allowance to the retirant as of the date of the 
beneficiaries death or September 18, 1996 whichever date occurs later. 

Effective September 16, 2004, all municipal service salary and hourly employees who retired on or before and 
received a monthly pension payroll paycheck on September 15, 2004 with said retiree selecting either an option 
2 or option 3 survivorship retirement benefit prior to the effective date of his retirement and the beneficiary 
nominated in accordance with either option having died prior to September 16, 2004, then the retirant's 
retirement allowance shall be paid as a straight life retirement allowance to the retirant as of the beneficiaries 
death or September 16, 2004 whichever date occurs later.

(d) A retroactive benefit shall be paid to all general city, police and fire retirees who have met all of the 
requirements of subsection (c) above from September 16, 1996 to date of the resolution passage by the city 
council. This benefit shall be paid in the month following city council passage of this Ordinance No. 1028, 
passed Jan. 6, 1997. In no instance shall any retroactive straight life benefit be paid for any retirement time 
prior to September 16, 1996 or to a deceased retiree's estate if the retiree died prior to September 16, 1996. 

A retroactive benefit shall be paid to all municipal service salary and hourly retirees who have met all of the 
requirements of subsection (c) above that pertains to municipal service as of September 16, 2004. This benefit 
shall be paid in the month following city council passage of Ordinance No. 1204 . In no instance shall any 
retroactive straight life benefit be paid for any retirement time prior to September 16, 2004 or to a deceased 
retiree's estate if the retiree died prior to September 16, 2004.



Section 7. Amendment of Subparagraph (b) of Sec. 2-245. “Special Supplemental Retirement Benefit 
Allowance”

Sec. 2-245. Special Supplemental Retirement Benefit Allowance

(a) The provisions of this section shall be effective December 15, 1980, and shall be operative during a fiscal 
year if the (i) retirement commission adopts a resolution as of September thirtieth of each fiscal year to allocate 
monies to the special retirement reserve fund for the fiscal year under section 2-238, and (ii) the city council 
adopts a resolution declaring the provisions of this section in effect for the fiscal year. 

(b) Subject to the preceding restrictions, to be eligible for a special supplemental retirement benefit allowance, 
the retirant or beneficiary must have been in receipt of a retirement allowance for one (1) full calendar year as 
of the September thirtieth prior to receiving a retirement allowance. Police members hired after February 1, 
1999, are ineligible for any improvement or supplemental payments of retirement allowances payable to 
retirants of the retirement system.

(c) The amount of the special supplemental retirement allowance to be paid each eligible retirant or beneficiary 
shall be equal to one-half of the total monies credited to the special retirement reserve fund as of September 
thirtieth of each fiscal year under section 2-238 divided by the total number of years of credited service for all 
eligible retirants and beneficiaries of the system multiplied by each retirant's or beneficiary's respective years of 
credited service in the system. 

(d) Payment of the special supplemental retirement benefit allowance set forth herein shall be paid to each 
eligible retirant or beneficiary on December fifteenth of each year. 

(e) A request form shall be submitted to each eligible retirant or beneficiary, and shall be returned within thirty 
(30) days of mailing. Failure to return the form will eliminate the benefit payment to the retirant or beneficiary 
for that fiscal period. 

(f) In the case of a beneficiary, the effective date of the special supplemental retirement benefit allowance shall 
be the date of death of the member of the system or the date of retirement of the member of the system, as the 
case may be. 

(g) The commission shall evaluate the requirements of this section and the possibility of increasing benefits 
under this section each fiscal year. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, no special supplemental retirement benefit 
allowance shall be made to any retirant or beneficiary in any fiscal year unless sufficient monies are available 
in the special retirement reserve fund to make the benefit payments provided in subsection (c). 

Section 8. Severability.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to 
give this ordinance full force and effect.



Section 9. Effective Date.
This Ordinance shall take effect fifteen (15) days from the date of its passage by the Wyandotte City Council 
and the Ordinance or its summary shall be published in a newspaper generally circulated in the City of 
Wyandotte within ten (10) days after adoption. A copy of this Ordinance may be inspected or obtained at the 
City of Wyandotte Clerk’s Office, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 4/20/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

ITEM: First Reading #1486: Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 14 - Garbage, Trash and 
Weeds

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: City of Wyandotte Code of Ordinance Chapter 14 Garbage, Trash and 
Weeds, addresses the type of trash receptacles and dumpsters to be used in trash collection, 
trash collection locations and time, and special refuse/bulk item pick up.

In light of the Waste Management Contract Amendment, which adds front load dumpsters and 
clarifies bulk item pickup, Chapter 14 should be amended to conform with these issues.

The proposed Chapter 14 Amendments, attached for your review, cover the addition of front 
load style dumpsters and includes clarification of bulk item pickup responsibilities and 
enforcement actions.

I recommend approval of the attached ordinance amendment language.
 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte's Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the maintenance of City services.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Concur with the proposed amendment to Chapter 14 Garbage, 
Trash and Weeds and schedule the first hearing for April 20, 2020.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: No budget implication.
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If Council concurs with the proposed amendment to Chapter 
14 Garbage, Trash and Weeds, schedule the first hearing for April 20, 2020.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Proposed Amendment to Chapter 14 040320



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #23
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council concurs with the proposed amendments to Chapter 14 Garbage, Trash and 
Weeds, and further, that the first reading of the Ordinance Amendment #1486 regarding the aforementioned 
section of the Code of Ordinances was held on April 20, 2020.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14 GARBAGE, TRASH AND WEEDS
ARTICLE I IN GENERAL 

 OF THE WYANDOTTE CODE OF ORDINANCE

THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE ORDAINS:

Section 1. Amend Article I. In General to read as follows: 

Sec. 14.2. Receptacles-Generally.

(d) Notwithstanding sections 14-4 and 14-5, upon written notice from the city, 
multiple residential, commercial and industrial premises must place all solid 
waste in a non-portable rear load or front load receptacles. All apartment 
buildings with six (6) or more residential units are required to have a non-
portable rear load or front load receptacles.

Sec. 14.4. Same-Rubbish generally.

  Rubbish may also be placed in non-portable rear load or front load 
receptacles approved by the city engineer which can be mechanically 
handled by collection equipment of the city contractors. Should a non-
portable rear load or front load receptacle be utilized, the charges will be 
determined by resolution of the city council.     

Sec. 14.5. Same-Commercial rubbish.

  Commercial rubbish may be placed in nonportable rear load or front load 
receptacles of substantial metal construction of two (2) to eight (8) cubic 
yards capacity and shall meet all specifications established by the city 
engineer on the basis of the requirements of the solid waste equipment 
being used by the city contractor.     
    
   Corrugated cardboard may be placed in non-portable corrugated 
cardboard receptacles of substantial metal construction of six-cubic-yard 
capacity as supplied by the city contractors.
         
   Receptacles that are badly broken or otherwise fail to meet the 
requirements of this section may be classified as rubbish and, after due 
notice to the owner, may be collected as rubbish by the department. 
 
   Receptacles which are furnished by the city contractor shall be owned, 
serviced, maintained and replaced as needed by the city contractor.     
    
   Should a non-portable rear load receptacle or non-portable corrugated 
cardboard receptacle be utilized, the charges will be determined by 
resolution of the city council. 

First Reading #1486

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-4
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-5


Sec. 14-7. Same-Location for collection.

(b)   Said receptacles, containers and bundles shall not be placed between 
the sidewalk and curb, or in the alley, as the case may be, before 6:00 p.m. 
of the day preceding the day scheduled for collection, and all empty 
receptacles and containers shall be removed back onto private property no 
later than 8:00 p.m. of the day following collection.  

   If said receptacles, containers and bundles are placed between the 
sidewalk and curb, or in the alley, prior to or after the permitted times, and 
the City deems that this condition would pose a health hazard, subject 
adjacent property occupants to an unreasonably offensive odor, or be a 
public nuisance, the City, with no notification to the property owner or 
tenant, shall pick up the items prior to the next regularly scheduled pick up 
day.  The property owner shall be responsible to pay the City costs as billed 
by the City to the property owner within thirty (30) days of the City’s mailing 
of the costs owed.  If the property owner fails to do so, the property owner 
is in violation of this ordinance and will be responsible for a municipal civil 
infraction. 

   It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to ensure its tenants 
are in compliance with this provision.

Sec. 14.8. Same-Collection frequency, supervision, etc.

   The collection of rubbish from non-portable rear load or front load 
receptacles approved by the city engineer shall be up to three (3) times 
each week. The collection of rubbish from all other locations shall be once a 
week. The collection of garbage, rubbish and ashes shall be under the 
direction of the department of engineering and shall be performed by the 
person designated by the city council to collect same.   

Sec. 14.8.1. Same-Collection requirements.

(9)    Non-portable rear load or front load receptacles (dumpsters): Solid 
waste shall be contained in receptacle as defined in sections 14-4, 14-
5 and 14-8. A service fee approved by city council will apply. 

(13)  Special refuse/bulk refuse: Shall be separated and clearly marked with 
a special refuse sticker. Refrigerators and freezers shall have the doors 
removed and be placed on their side. Bulk refuse shall be neatly placed out 
for collection.  All fabric materials such as, but not limited to, sofas, 
mattresses and box springs that are soiled or infested with bed bugs shall be 
completely wrapped in plastic and securely taped, otherwise the items will 
not be picked up.

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-4
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-5
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-5
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/wyandotte/latest/wyandotte_mi/0-0-0-64196#JD_14-8


(b)   Removal of mass disposal of bulk refuse, domestic rubbish, garbage, 
solid waste and special refuse generated from site evictions, foreclosures, 
move-outs or construction/renovations, shall be the responsibility of the 
property owner.  The property owner shall contract for the disposal of such 
materials with a private contractor and pay all costs associated with the 
mass disposal of the materials from the property on the day of the site 
eviction, move-out or construction/renovation activity.  

   In cases where the Court is involved and has issued a writ for possession, 
the Court Officer with the writ may hire a private contractor for disposal of 
such materials.  

   Dumpsters may be available from the City of Wyandotte DPS at certain 
times of the year for a fee.  

   If said bulk refuse, domestic rubbish, garbage, solid waste and special 
refuse generated from site evictions, foreclosures, move-outs or 
construction/renovations are placed between the sidewalk and curb, or in 
the alley, prior to or after the permitted times, and the City deems that this 
condition would pose a health hazard, subject adjacent property occupants 
to an unreasonably offensive odor, or be a public nuisance, the City, with no 
notification to the property owner or tenant, shall pick up the items prior to 
the next regularly scheduled pick up day.  The property owner shall be 
responsible to pay the City costs as billed by the City to the property owner 
within thirty (30) days of the City’s mailing of the costs owed.  If the 
property owner fails to do so, the property owner is in violation of this 
ordinance and will be responsible for a municipal civil infraction. 

Section 2. Interpretation.

Nothing in this Ordinance or in the Code hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any 
suit or proceeding in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause 
or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; 
nor shall any just or legal right or remedy or any character be lost, impaired or affected 
by this Ordinance.

Section 3. Severability.

Severability.  Should any word, sentence, phrase or any portion of this Ordinance be 
held in a manner invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or by any state agency 
having authority to do so for any reason whatsoever, such holdings shall be construed 
and limited to such word, sentence, phrase or any portion of the Ordinance held to be so 
invalid and shall not be construed as affecting the validity of any of the remaining words, 
sentences, phrases or portions of this Ordinance.



Section 4. Conflicting Ordinance.

Conflicting Ordinances.  All prior existing ordinances adopted by the City of Wyandotte 
inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such 
conflict or inconsistency, hereby expressly repealed.

Section 5. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect fifteen (15) days from the date of its passage by the 
Wyandotte City Council and a copy of the Ordinance or a summary of said Ordinance 
shall be published in a newspaper generally circulated in the City of Wyandotte within 
ten (10) days after adoption.  A copy of this ordinance may be inspected or obtained at 
the City of Wyandotte Clerk’s Office, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan.

On the question, “SHALL THIS ORDINANCE NOW PASS?”  the following vote was 
recorded.

       YEAS NAYS
____                     Alderman ____
____ Calvin ____
____ DeSana ____
____ Maiani ____
____ Sabuda ____
____ Schultz ____

ABSENT ____________________________

I hereby approve the adoption of the foregoing Ordinance this _____ day of _____
________________, 20__.

CERTIFICATION

We, the undersigned, Joseph R. Peterson and Lawrence S. Stec, respectively, the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City of Wyandotte, do hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance 
was duly passed by the City Council of the City of Wyandotte, at a regular session on 
Monday, ______ day of ____________________________, 20___.

_____________________________ ______________________________
Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor

NOTICE OF ADOPTION

The City of Wyandotte Zoning Ordinance has been amended as follows:

The effective date of this Ordinance is ________________________________.  A copy 
of this Ordinance may be purchased or inspected at the City of Wyandotte Clerk’s Office, 
3200 Biddle Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #24
Date: April 20, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 

AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED
AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE SALARY FOR THE

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE ORDAINS:

Section 1.  Salary for Department of Legal Affairs

The salary for the law firm of William R. Look, P.C. as the Department of Legal Affairs for the City of Wyandotte shall be at a yearly salary of 
Eighty Thousand and 00/100 ($80,000.00) Dollars to cover the period from April 20, 2020 to April 19, 2022.  In addition, the law firm shall be 
reimbursed for miscellaneous costs and expenses incurred when acting as legal counsel for the City of Wyandotte.

Section 2.  Severability.

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herein are hereby repealed, only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

Section 3.  Effective Date.

This ordinance shall take immediate effect.  This ordinance is deemed necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health, 
safety and for providing for the usual daily operation of the City. This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper generally circulated in the City of 
Wyandotte within ten (10) days after adoption.  The ordinance shall designate the location in the City where a true copy of the ordinance can be 
inspected or obtained.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   

First & Final Reading
             #1487



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
BEAUTIFICATION COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES, DRAFT

MARCH, 2020

Members Present: John Darin, Chairman, Kelly Dodson, Barbara Freese, Andrea Fuller, Noel Galeski, 
Wendy Leach, Alice Ugljesa

Members Excused:  Michael Bak, Patricia Iacopelli, Stephanie Pizzo

Guest(s):  None

1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by John at 6:00 pm.  

2. Approval of Agenda:  Motion was made by Wendy, seconded by Andrea, to approve this meeting’s 
agenda, with changes to move Hanging Baskets and Landscape Planning agenda items to the 
beginning of the agenda for this meeting.  The motion was approved.

3. Reading and Approval of Previous Minutes:
a. February 12, 2020 Regular Meeting: After review of the minutes, Alice made a motion, seconded by 

Wendy, to approve the draft minutes of the February 12, 2020 regular meeting of the Beautification 
Commission, without change.  The motion was approved.

4. Chairperson’s Report:
a. Distribution of Documents:  An updated Attendance Log and 2020 Meeting Dates with expanded 

primary agenda items list were distributed.
b. Completion of Remaining Required Annual Disclosure Statements:  The City Clerk’s Office 

provided copies of the 2020 Disclosure Form to be completed, signed, and dated by all 
commissioners.  Forms will be mailed by the City Clerk’s Office to commissioners Michael Bak, 
Patricia Iacopelli, and Stephanie Pizzo for their completion and return to the City Clerk’s Office by 
the April 28, 2020 deadline.

5. Treasurer’s Report:   
a. FY 2019-2020 Beautification Commission Expense Report:  The Treasurer’s Report was 

distributed.  There were no expenses incurred, leaving a current account balance of $6,061.98.  
There were no expenses posted to the GFM Reserve account, leaving a current balance of 
$249.78.  

6. Spring Hanging Baskets:  Alice reported that the hanging baskets will be delivered and installed before 
the Dig-In, on Friday, May 15th.

7. Spring Dig-In Planning:  
a. Landscaping Purchases:  Alice reported that anticipated expenses to date from Four Star 

Greenhouse for the Spring Dig-In plantings are currently at $3,260.80.  Quote/invoice to follow for 
posting on Treasurer’s Report.  Commissioners were cautioned to carefully monitor their spending 
commitments due to budgetary considerations.  Current Spring Dig-In budget is $3,230, which has 
been met.  Alice is planning to purchase ferns from Kroger.  There is also interest in purchasing 3 
planter pots to replace existing pots which have become damaged and cracked over time.  Current 
budget for Planters & Equipment is $500. 

b. Tree Planting Day:  It was noted that DPS is sponsoring a Tree Planting Day at Beaver Park, 
Goddard and 11th Street on July 25th.  The Beautification Commission will reach out to DPS 
regarding this event.

8. Public & Media Relations and Event Marketing Report:  Andrea reported that she has developed the 
flyer for the Spring Clean-Up and will be working on the Spring Dig-In flyer.  She has been working with 
Kelly to promote volunteer registrations through many channels.

REPORTS & MINUTES



Beautification Commission Meeting Minutes, Draft
March 11, 2020
Page 2

9. “Adopt-A-Spot in Wyandotte” Program Update:  Wendy reported that she will be contacting Pattie 
Christie at Hood’s Hardware to request permission to post an Adopt-A-Spot flyer in her store.  Andrea 
recommended that Wendy use the original flyer to promote the AAS Program.  Also, it was reported 
that the Welcome Sign at Beaver Park has been approved by DPS to be adopted.  John suggested that 
all existing AAS sites be surveyed in early Spring to assess them.  John offered to assist Wendy in the 
site drive-by reviews.

10. Community Garden Update:  Community Garden Opening is scheduled for Saturday, April 25, 2020.
a. Phase 2 Planning:  John and Barbara met with Greg Mayhew and Brian Martin on February 24th to 

review the Community Garden Phase 2 plans.  There was much very positive discussion regarding 
construction of accessible garden beds.  It was decided to construct 4 U-shaped raised garden beds 
that would be accessible by wheelchair.  In addition, two elevated raised beds would be constructed 
to be accessible by standing persons unable to bend or kneel to plant or tend to raised beds closer to 
grade level.    The remainder of the Phase 2 space will be sodded for weed control and aesthetics.  
Engineering will provide a site drawing to scale for the Phase 2 development.  This is a very exciting 
development for the evolution of the Community Garden.

b. Ribbon-Cutting Event Planning:  John, Barbara, and Andrea met to plan a ribbon-cutting ceremony.  It 
was decided that the date of the event will be Thursday, July 23rd, rain or shine.  We will erect our 
canopy, have some tables and chairs set-up, and invite gardeners, media, local leaders, elected 
officials, business owners, and other community stakeholders.  Joe Gruber has offered to assist the 
Commission in promoting this event.

c. Updated Copy for Wyandotte Today Magazine: It was brought to the Commission’s attention that the 
copy regarding the Community Garden in the Wyandotte Today magazine was outdated.  New copy 
was written, and submitted to Julie Sadlowski for forwarding to the appropriate party.  

11. Spring Clean-Up Planning:  Noel reported that all plans are on track.  We will need to purchase 
additional lawn bags.  John will confirm number and location of hedge trimmers that were purchased, 
and add those tools to the inventory list.  John reported that the Spring Clean-Up activity has been 
donated 10 cases of Niagara bottled water for the event(s), courtesy of Keep America Beautiful!  There 
was much discussion on engaging the DDA merchants and city government personnel in the Clean-Up 
efforts.  Noel will initiate discussions through her channels regarding increasing business and municipal 
involvement in city enhancement and beautification activities and events.

12. Old Business:  There was no Old Business.

13. New Business:  There was no New Business.

14. Round-Table Reports and Announcements: John reported that the BCSEM & KMB “Celebrate Spring!” 
program scheduled for Wednesday, April 8, 2020 has been cancelled due to the coronavirus pandemic.

15. Next Meeting:  The next regular meeting of the Beautification Commission is scheduled for Wednesday, 
April 15, 2020 at 6:00 pm at City Hall, Mayor’s Conference Room, Third Floor, 3200 Biddle Avenue.  

16. Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 pm.

___________________________________
John M. Darin
Chairman, Wyandotte Beautification Commission 



 
 

Cultural & Historical Commission 

2624 Biddle Avenue • Wyandotte, Michigan 48192 • 734.324.7284 • Fax 734.324.7283 • museum@wyan.org 

www.wyandotte.net 

Equal Housing Opportunity/Equal Opportunity Employer  

OFFICIALS 

 
Theodore H. Galeski 
CITY ASSESSOR 

 
Lawrence S. Stec 
CITY CLERK 

 

Todd M. Browning 
CITY TREASURER 

 

 

MAYOR 
Joseph R. Peterson 

 

COUNCIL 
Robert Alderman 

Chris Calvin 

Robert A. DeSana 

Megan Maiani 

Leonard T. Sabuda 

Donald Schultz Jr. 

 

Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, February 13, 2020 

6:15pm, Marx Home 
 

 

Present: Nancy Bozzo, Eula Grooms, Don Gutz, Wallace Hayden, Jakki Malnar, Ken Navarre, Anne Ronco 

Excused: Ken Munson, Sue Pilon 

Staff: Jesse Rose, Museum Director; Annika Taylor, Museum Assistant 

 

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:15pm. 

 

MOTION by Anne Ronco, SUPPORTED by Nancy Bozzo, to approve the January minutes, with the minor 

revision of the spelling of “accoutrements.” Motion carried 7-0. 

 

Guests: Ashley Fallon, whose master’s degree is in historic preservation, observed the meeting.  

 

President’s Report: The commission presented a certificate of appreciation to Eula Grooms for her many volunteer 

hours with the salvage program.  

 

Director’s Report:  

 

MOTION by Anne Ronco, SUPPORTED by Eula Grooms, to approve the January financial report as presented. 

Motion carried 7-0. 

 

The museum’s attic gallery will become a new rotational exhibit space, starting with an Ann Marston exhibit this 

spring. The architecture pieces on display in the corner will be removed. 

 

Brian Martin from Wyandotte DPW, a certified arborist, is interested in grafting the museum’s apple tree to create a 

new tree should this one die, as well as to sell trees as a museum fundraiser.  

 

MOTION by Eula Grooms, SUPPORTED by Nancy Bozzo, to adjourn the meeting at 7:02pm.  

Motion carried 7-0. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Annika Taylor, Museum Assistant 

 

mailto:museum@wyan.org
http://www.wyandotte.net/






City of Wyandotte
Police Commission Meeting

Regular Commission Meeting 
March 10, 2020

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner John Harris
Commissioner Doug Melzer 
Commissioner Bobie Heck 
Chief Brian Zalewski

Absent: NONE 

Others Present: Deputy Chief Archie Hamilton   

The regular meeting was called to order at the Wyandotte Police Department, 2015 Biddle 
Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan by Chairperson, Commissioner Harris at 6:26 p.m.

The Minutes from the regular Police Commission meeting on February 25, 2020 were presented. 

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the regular minutes of February 25, 2020, as presented.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NONE

COMMUNICATIONS

NONE

DEPARTMENTAL

1. Police Statistics – February 2020, Year-To-Date

There is nothing out of the ordinary going on in the community.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the police statistics for February 2020 and Year-To-Date and place on 
file.

2. Purchase of Body Worn Cameras

Chief Zalewski and Deputy Chief Hamilton have been researching body worn cameras 
for over a year, and a request for proposals was recently advertised to secure the 
equipment, software etc.  The Department received 6 proposals.

After review of the proposals, the Department would like to go with Axon who is more 
equipped to meet all of our needs.  Also, we currently use Axon Tasers.



A handful of downriver communities currently use Axon body worn cameras.  

The Department will purchase 35 body worn cameras so each sworn officer will have 
their own camera with three spare cameras available if needed.  The initial camera 
purchase is $63,917; this includes implementation, downloading docks, training etc.

At the end of their shift, the officer will place their camera into the downloading dock 
where the data will be extracted and the camera fully charged.

The camera videos will be available through the website Evidence.com

Body worn cameras are more versatile and desirable than car cameras; car cameras only 
provide the front portion view whereas the body cameras will provide multiple views.

The Department can set its own retention schedule for the various types of videos that are 
recorded.

This particular Axon package provides 7 terabytes of data.  We can adjust the amount we 
need based upon our actual usage.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the purchase of Axon Body Worn Cameras as presented by Chief 
Zalewski.

3. Bills and Accounts – March 10, 2020, $111,757.66

Melzer moved, Heck seconded
A Roll Call was held and the Motion 
CARRIED, to approve payment of the bills for March 10, 2020, $111,757.66

NEW BUSINESS.

1. Annual Awards Dinner – The annual Awards Dinner will be held Friday, March 20, 
2020, at 6:00 p.m. at the FOP.  Silver Shores will cater the affair.  No public funds will be 
used.

Twenty-one awards will be presented as of now.

Members of the Audience

ADJOURNMENT 

Since there was no further business to come before the Commission, there was a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to adjourn meeting at 6:40 p.m.

Laura Allen
Administrative Assistant
Wyandotte Police Department 

Commission Meeting Minutes
Page –2



City of Wyandotte
Police Commission Meeting

Regular Commission Meeting 
February 25, 2020

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner John Harris
Commissioner Doug Melzer 
Commissioner Bobie Heck 
Chief Brian Zalewski

Absent: NONE 

Others Present: NONE   

The regular meeting was called to order at the Wyandotte Police Department, 2015 Biddle 
Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan by Chairperson, Commissioner Harris at 6:00 p.m.

The Minutes from the regular Police Commission meeting on January 28, 2020 were presented. 

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the regular minutes of January 28, 2020, as presented.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NONE

COMMUNICATIONS

NONE

DEPARTMENTAL

1. Police Statistics – January 2020

There is nothing out of the ordinary to report.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to receive the January 2020 police statistics and place on file.

2. Outside Employment Applications – Officer John Webb & Officer Aaron Worley

Officer Webb is renewing his application to work for Luna Pier law enforcement.

Officer Worley is submitting his application for grass cutting and landscaping work.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the Outside Employment Applications for both Officer Webb and Officer 
Worley and place on file.



3. Citizen Evaluation of Services

The Department received evaluation of services forms for both Officer Harris and Officer 
Sasu.  In both instances, the respondents appreciated our officers’ services.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to receive the Citizen Evaluation of Services responses and place on file.

4. Bills and Accounts – February 11, 2020, $34,055.35, February 25, 2020, $9,786.65

Melzer moved, Heck seconded
A Roll Call was held and the Motion 
CARRIED, to approve payment of the bills for February 11, 2020, $34,055.35, February 25, 
2020, $9,786.65

NEW BUSINESS.

1. SINC Software Platform – Chief Zalewski requested approval to pay the invoice from 
Trenton regarding the initial set up of the SINC Software Platform in the amount of 
$22,197.70.

Commissioner Harris inquired if other cities received invoices as well, to which the Chief 
answered yes.  All the other cities joining SINC received their invoices as well.

Chief Zalewski explained that if the Commission approved the invoice, it would be 
forwarded to the Mayor / Council for final approval.

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to approve the payment of the invoice from Trenton regarding the initial setup of the 
SINC Software Platform as presented.

2. Jail Area, Including Prisoner Receiving Garages – The Chief advised the Commission 
that the jail area, including the prisoner receiving garages have had epoxy put on the 
floors.

The Southgate Police Department graciously agreed to hold our prisoners for the week.

Wyandotte Police Department should be back in business by Thursday night when the 
floors have cured properly.

Members of the Audience

ADJOURNMENT 

Since there was no further business to come before the Commission, there was a motion to 
adjourn the meeting at 6:17 p.m. 

Melzer moved, Heck seconded,
CARRIED, to adjourn meeting at 6:17 p.m.

Laura Allen
Administrative Assistant
Wyandotte Police Department 

Commission Meeting Minutes
Page –2






	 CALL TO ORDER
	 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	 ROLL CALL
	 PRESENTATIONS
	 PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS
	 PUBLIC HEARINGS
	 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	 CALL TO THE PUBLIC
	 CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes - 03.02.2
	Resolution
	03 02 2020

	2. Quarterly Investment Reports – 2019 3rd and 4th Qu
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Report on CD's (attachment A)
	Report on Other Accounts (attachment B)

	3. 2020 Bishop Park Concession Lease
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Bishop Park Contract 2020

	4. 2020/2021 Blount Cruise Ship Dockings
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Blount Hold Harmless Agreements
	2020 Blount Contract

	5. 2020 WSAF Guide Book 
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	CPM Wyandotte water report inclusion within Q3 TODAY mags 2020 Proposal

	6. Mimi's Mission Non-Profit Status Request
	Resolution
	MIMI'S MISSION_LETTER


	 NEW BUSINESS
	7. State of Emergency-City of Wyandotte
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution

	8. Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act and Emergency Family
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Family Medical Leave Act. 3-30-2020
	FMLA Sick Leave 3-30-2020

	9. Reappointment – Department of Legal Affairs
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Department of Legal Affairs Proposal

	10. Appointment to Planning Commission
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Commission Application
	Commission Application Background
	Resume - Kelly Stec

	11. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Equip
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Actual & Budget Projections - Equipment & Replacement Fund
	State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1

	12. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Const
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Actual & Budget Projections - Construction Fund
	State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1

	13. City of Wyandotte Deficit Elimination Plan - Brown
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Actual & Budget Projections - Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund
	Unrestricted Net Asset Calculation_Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund
	State of Michigan Numbered Letter 2016-1

	14. Police Department-Purchase of Body Worn Cameras
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Letter to Police Commision-BWC
	Bid Deposit Log Sheet-Clerks Office BWC
	Axon Bid Proposal-BWC

	15. 1st Amendment to Maintenance Agreement w/ Wayne Me
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement Wayne Metro

	16. Bid File #4719: Waste Management Contract Amendmen
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	WM Contract Amendment 032020
	WM Container Conversion Request

	17. Bid File #4707: Contract Extension - Asphalt Resur
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Signed Contract Extension
	2020 Street Program

	18. Bid File #4757: Contract Extension - Bituminous St
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Joint Seal Contract Extension

	19. Bid File #4726: Contract Extension - Grass Cutting
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	us lawns contract extension

	20. Bid File #4778: Demolition of Various Structures
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	#4778 BID TAB
	#4778 PRO EXCAVATION

	21. Composting Agreement
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	RRR Compost Agreement April 2020

	22. Final Reading #1485: Amendment to the City of Wyan
	Resolution

	23. First Reading #1486: Ordinance Amendment to Chapte
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Proposed Amendment to Chapter 14 040320

	24. First &amp; Final Reading #1487: Setting Salary fo
	Resolution


	 BILLS & ACCOUNTS
	 REPORTS & MINUTES
	 Beautification Commission 03/11/2020
	Beautification Commission Minutes, Draft, Mar. 11, 2020

	 Cultural and Historical Commission - 2/13/2020
	February 2020 Commission Minutes

	 Fire Commission 2/25/2020
	Fire Commission 2-25-20

	 Police Commission 03/10/2020
	March 10 2020

	 Police Commission 02/25/2020
	February 25 2020

	 WMS Commission 2/26/2020
	WMS Commission Minutes Signed 2-26-2020


	 REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS
	 NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL:
	 ADJOURNMENT



